
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, AUGUST 2, 2021  

(Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–4:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. Mayoral Applicants Presentations (Applicants will present in alphabetical order.)

4. NEW BUSINESS

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Rev. David Elliott, St. James AME Zion Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of July 12, 2021

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B.  Employee Performance Awards  

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (*Motion/Second--Roll Call)
C. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 1003 N. George Street to

Melissa Bynum Gill (Finance)  
D. Operating Budget Amendment FY21-22 (Finance) 
E. Bid Award for Picnic Shelter Install at Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (Parks and Recreation) 
F. Optimist Back to School Kids Fun Day – Temporary Street Closure (Police) 
G. Change Order No. 3 for 2020 Street Paving Project (Formal Bid #2020-001) (Engineering)  
H. SU-7-21 King’s Auto (Used Auto Sales) – North side of E. US Hwy. 70 between Calvary Road and Norwood 

Avenue (Planning) 
I. Z-7-21 MC Morgan and Associates (Tiffany Gardens Phase II) – West side of Thoroughfare Road between 

Central Heights Road and NC Railroad (Planning) 
J. Contract Award for Goldsboro Turning Movement Count Inventory (Planning) 

VIII. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION (*Motion/Second)
K. Street Name Change – Poplar Street to Dr. H.E. McNair Street (Planning)
L. SU-8-21 Well Travelled Beer – Southwest corner of South Center Street and Chestnut Street (Place of

Entertainment w/ ABC Permits – Amendment) (Planning) 

IX. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

X. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
M.   Purple Heart Proclamation 

XI. CLOSED SESSION

XII. ADJOURN



1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
JULY 12, 2021 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council 
Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on July 12, 2021. 

Call to Order.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  

Present: Mayor Pro Tem David Ham, Presiding 
Councilmember Hiawatha Jones  
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Taj Polack 
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
Councilmember Gene Aycock (joined at 5:43 pm via Zoom) 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Laura Getz, City Clerk 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by Councilmember 
Polack and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda.    

Mayoral Vacancy Discussion. Mayor Pro Tem Ham shared information concerning Exhibit A 
Procedure for Filling Vacant Mayoral Seat and shared the proposed dates. Councilmember Broadaway made a 
motion to accept the proposed dates. Councilmember Polack seconded the motion.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham, 
Councilmembers Jones, Broadaway and Polack voted for the motion.  Councilmember Matthews voted against 
the motion.  The motion passed 4:1.  City Manager Tim Salmon asked for approval from Council on the 
addition of #14, the conflict of interest statement regarding voting in the procedures. Councilmember Polack 
made a motion to adopt with the recommended adjustments from line 14 that we accept.  Councilmember Jones 
seconded the motion.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Jones, Broadaway and Polack voted for the 
motion.  Councilmember Matthews voted against the motion.  The motion passed 4:1. 

Public Utilities Infrastructure Projects Update. Marty Anderson, City Engineer and Mike Wagner, 
Public Utilities Director presented the following information.  

Item A



2 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 HUB Rental Information.  Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development Director presented information 
concerning the HUB rental fees. Council discussed the proposed fees and guidelines.  Upon motion of 
Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by Councilmember Polack and unanimously carried, Council accepted 
the fee structure as recommended by staff.  
 

Retention Pay. City Manager Tim Salmon shared information about Police Department retention. 
Police Chief Mike West shared detailed information about the retention pay proposal of 6% for the Police 
Department. Council discussed options for Police Department salaries and positions. Council discussed the 
proposal.  Councilmember Broadaway made a motion to approve the 6.5% pay increase for police department. 



3 
 
 
 
 

There was no second. Councilmember Polack made a motion to go with the city manager’s recommendation of 
5%.  Councilmember Broadaway seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.   

Mike Wagner, Public Utilities Director shared information concerning retention in the Public Utilities 
Department. He shared that the 5% increase for his staff was added to the current budget.   
 

Homeless Board. City Manager Tim Salmon shared information concerning the potential for a 
homeless committee. Council discussed the potential board to include citizens from each district on the board.  
Councilmember Polack made a motion to establish a board or commission to address homelessness across the 
county and the city collaboratively. Councilmember Aycock seconded the motion and the motion passed 
unanimously. Councilmember Polack restated his motion to create a collaborative board amongst the city and 
the county to address homelessness. Councilmember Jones seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  
 

Consent Agenda Review.  Each item was reviewed.  Additional discussion included the following:  
 
Item F. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 412 

East Walnut to Oliver Design Group, LLC. Upon motion of Councilmember Polack, seconded by 
Councilmember Matthews and unanimously carried, Council agreed to accept the initial bid and authorize 
Finance to advertise for upset bids for 412 East Walnut Street.   

 
Departmental monthly reports were discussed.  
 
The meeting recessed at 6:30 pm. Upon motion of Councilmember Polack, seconded by Councilmember 

Broadaway and unanimously carried, Council came back into regular session.     
 
Closed Session Held.  Upon motion of Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Polack and 

unanimously carried, Council convened into Closed Session to discuss a litigation and personnel matter.   
 
Council came out of Closed Session.   

 
There being no further business, the meeting recessed until 7:00 p.m.  

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular session in Council Chambers, 
City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on July 12, 2021. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Archbishop Anthony Slater with Tehillah Church Ministries provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance 
followed. 
 

Roll Call.  
 
 Present:  Mayor Pro Tem David Ham, Presiding 

Councilmember Hiawatha Jones 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Taj Polack 

   Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
    Councilmember Gene Aycock (attended via Zoom) 
  
 Approval of Minutes.  Councilmember Matthews made a motion that the minutes be amended to reflect 
her opposal to the resolution, the procedure and the adoption of the agenda of the June 21, 2021 meeting due to 
the fact she was not given an opportunity to cast a vote. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Polack. 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Jones, Polack, Matthews and Aycock voted in favor of the motion. 
Councilmember Broadaway voted against the motion.  The motion passed 5:1.  City Attorney Ron Lawrence 
stated that it did not change the outcome of the votes and that the majority voted in the affirmative of the 
motions that were made. Councilmember Jones made a motion to approve the minutes with the said 
amendments to the June 21st meeting. Councilmember Polack seconded the motion. Mayor Pro Tem Ham 
restated the motion to include the approval of the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of June 14, 2021, minutes of 
the Special Meeting of June 18, 2021 and the minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of June 21, 



4 
 
 
 
 

2021 as amended.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Jones, Polack, Matthews and Aycock voted in favor 
of the motion. Councilmember Broadaway voted against the motion.  The motion passed 5:1.   

 
Public Hearings.  
SU-7-21 King’s Auto (Used Auto Sales) – North side of E. US Hwy. 70 between Calvary Road and 

Norwood Avenue. Public Hearing Held. The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the operation of a 
used auto sales lot located in the General Business (GB) zoning district.   
 
According to the City’s Unified Development Code, used automobile sales is a permitted use in the General 
Business (GB) zoning district only after the obtainment of a Special Use Permit approved by City Council. 
Currently, the applicant is seeking a variance for the property from the Goldsboro Board of Adjustment.  The 
principle structure is located 4.34 ft. from the western property line and does not meet the side setback 
requirement of 15 ft.  No action can be taken on the special use permit request without a variance from the 
Goldsboro Board of Adjustment scheduled for July 26, 2021. 
 
Frontage: 114.45 ft.   
Area:  0.66 Acres 
Zoning:   General Business (GB) 
 
Previously, the site was approved as a sign fabrication business formerly known as Southern Signs, Inc.    
Existing Use:  Currently, the existing commercial buildings and lot are unoccupied. 
 
Approval criteria of used automobile sales requiring a special-use permit from Goldsboro City Council are as 
follows: 

 
1.  The minimum lot area is 15,000 sq. ft. 
2.  The minimum lot frontage and width shall be 100 ft.  
3. No parking of used vehicles or customer vehicles shall be allowed within the required street yard landscape 

area. 
4. No vehicles for sale shall be parked within 20 ft. of residentially-zoned property. 
5. All vehicular display areas shall be improved with approved surfaces, curb and gutter in accordance with 

the City’s UDO. 
 
The applicant has submitted a preliminary site plan which indicates compliance with the above-listed approval 
criteria for used automobile sales as a special-use in the General Business (GB) zoning district. 
 
In addition, the site plan shows an existing one-story commercial building of approximately 2,460 sq. ft. 
proposed for use as offices for automobile sales, record-keeping, public restrooms and storage.  Another 
existing one-story commercial building is attached to the principle structure consisting of approximately 1,050 
sq. ft. and formerly used as storage space.  Applicant intends to convert attached storage building into an 
automobile service bay for customers of the business. 
 
Access to the site will be provided directly from N.C. Secondary Road No. 1591 by a proposed 22 ft. wide 
paved access drive.  NCDOT officials have been contacted since this is a state-maintained road.  According to 
NCDOT officials, no roadway improvements will be required for the site.  
 
Parking for the site requires 1 space per employee and 5 customer spaces.  A total of 7 paved parking spaces are 
proposed to include 1 handicap accessible space. 
 
Internal concrete sidewalks are shown providing access to building entrances through sloped ramps and 
handicap accessible walkways.  External sidewalks are not required for the site in accordance with the City’s 
UDO and the Recommended Pedestrian Facilities Plan. 
 
Interconnectivity has not been shown for the site.  The owner/developer will be required to identify 
interconnectivity for the site should adjacent property directly east of the property be improved for commercial 
development in the future. 
 
City water and sewer are available to serve the subject property.  The property is not located within a special 
flood hazard area. City Engineering will require approval of drainage plans prior to issuance of any building 
permits.    
 



5 
 
 
 
 

A portion of the subject property located at the rear of the site is outside the City limits of Goldsboro.  The 
owner of the property will be required to annex this portion of the property into Goldsboro’s city limits since 
City utilities serve the site.   
 
Maple trees have been shown along the frontage of the property to serve as required street trees for the site.  A 
Type A, 10’ wide landscape buffer is required along the western property line.  An existing 6 ft. in height 
opaque chain-link fence serves to buffer the property from existing commercial development directly west of 
the site.  Existing vegetation at the rear of the property serves as the required Type C, 20ft. wide landscape 
buffer yard.  City staff will ensure additional landscape plantings will be installed should any deficiencies exist 
after site improvements have been finalized. 
 
Commercial dumpsters will be utilized for garbage collection and have been identified on the submitted site 
plans.  Staff will ensure that dumpster corals are properly constructed and appropriately screened from off-site 
views in accordance with City standards.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke and the Public Hearing was closed.  
 
No action necessary.  The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for City Council at the August 2, 
2021 Council meeting. 
 

SU-8-21 Well Travelled Beer –Southwest corner of South Center Street and Chestnut Street 
(Place of Entertainment w/ ABC Permits – Amendment) Southwest corner of South Center Street and 
Chestnut Street (Place of Entertainment w/ ABC Permits – Amendment). Public Hearing Held. The 
applicant requests to amend a previously issued Conditional Use Permit (CU-6-17) to allow the operation of a 
place of entertainment with ABC Permits.  The amendment would allow the extension of the hours of operation.   
 
Frontage:    72.26 ft. (S. Center Street) 
        119.4 ft. (W. Chestnut Street) 
Depth:        119.4 ft.  
Area:              .2 Acres 
Zoning:      Central Business District (CBD) 
 
Existing Hours of Operation: Tues – Thurs (3pm – 11pm) 
    Fri – Sat (3pm – 12am) 
    Sun (12pm – 4pm) 
Number of Employees:  2        
 
The applicant was granted a Conditional Use Permit to allow the operation of a place of entertainment with 
ABC Permits by City Council at their December 7, 2015 meeting.  The existing Conditional Use Permit was 
amended and approved by City Council at their May 8, 2017 meeting to expand the operation for additional 
seating.  The applicant is now requesting to extend the hours of operation on Fridays and Saturdays from 3pm – 
12am to 3pm to 2am.     
 
The applicant renovated approximately 1,600 square feet of an existing two-story, 5,384 square foot masonry-
brick building for craft beer sales and consumption.  In 2017 the applicant renovated an additional 1,674 square 
feet of the first floor for additional seating and storage.   
 
The submitted floor plan shows seating for fifty-nine (59) people, beverage shelving and display areas, 
bathrooms and a bar.  The applicant is only requesting to extend the hours on Fridays and Saturdays with no 
other requests and/or improvements at this time. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on 
August 2, 2021. 
 

Z-7-21 MC Morgan and Associates (Tiffany Gardens Phase II) – West side of Thoroughfare Road 
between Central Heights Road and NC Railroad. Public Hearing Held. The applicant requests a change of 
zone for a portion of the subject property from Residential (R-16) to Residential (R-6CZ) Conditional Zoning 
limiting the use to an 84-unit apartment complex.  In conjunction with the request, the applicant is requesting a 
Conditional Use permit (CU-5-21) for the construction of the apartment complex in the Residential (R-6) 
zoning district. 



6 
 
 
 
 

Frontage: +500 ft. (Thoroughfare Road) 
Depth:  +300 ft.  
Area:  +7.7 Acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 
North:  Residential (R-16) RM-NC/Residential (R-12CZ); Residential (R-9) 
South: Residential (R-16/R-12) 
East: Residential (R-16/R-9) 
West: Residential (R-16/R-12CZ)  
 
On April 1, 2019, Goldsboro City Council accepted the recommendation of the Goldsboro Planning 
Commission and adopted an Ordinance (Z-14-19) changing the zone for property directly north of subject 
property from Residential (R-16 and R-12) to Residential (R-12CZ) Conditional Zoning limiting the use of the 
property to an eighty-four unit apartment complex. 
 
City Council at their April 5, 2021 denied the applicant’s request to rezone the subject property for the 
apartment complex.  At their May 3, 2021 meeting, the Council voted to rehear Tiffany Garden Phase II 
Rezoning as they found there to be substantial change in the conditions and circumstances bearing on the 
application.    
 
Now, with the request of the Council to rehear the rezoning request, the developer is proposing the second 
phase of residential development consisting of an eighty-four (84) unit apartment complex.  
 
The property is currently vacant. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Medium Density Residential (MDR) development.  In addition, the Plan 
recommends that higher densities should be encouraged since City water and sewer are available to serve the 
property. 
 
The submitted preliminary site plan indicates three (3), three-story apartment buildings containing a total of 84 
units.  In addition, a community building is also being proposed on site.   
 
Access to the site will be directly from Thoroughfare Road.  Since Thoroughfare Road is a state-maintained 
road, NCDOT officials have been contacted and are requiring driveway permits, as well as, left and right turn 
lanes along Central Heights Road as a result of Phase I development.  
 
Parking for the site requires two spaces per unit plus .5 per bedroom over two.  36 of the 84 total units will be 3-
bedroom units, 35 units will be 2-bedroom units and the remaining 13 units will be 1-bedroom units.   
 
A total of 176 parking spaces are required and 176 spaces have been shown on the preliminary site plan.   
 
External City sidewalks are required for new development, however, the City’s Pedestrian Facilities Plan does 
not recommend sidewalks for the area.  Frontage along Thoroughfare Road is approximately 460 ft.  The 
developer will be required to install sidewalks or pay a fee in lieu of in the amount of $8,280 to the City of 
Goldsboro. 
 
Internal concrete sidewalks are shown providing access to building entrances through sloped ramps and 
handicap accessible walkways. 
 
Lighting Plan:  A commercial lighting plan has not been submitted.  Since the subject property is located 
adjacent to residentially-zoned and developed properties, the developer will be required to submit a lighting 
plan in compliance with the City’s Commercial Lighting ordinance. 
 
Interconnectivity:  Interconnectivity has been shown west of the site as adjacent property is currently being 
developed for multi-family use. 
 
City water and sewer are available to serve the subject property.  The property is not located within a special 
flood hazard area.  City Engineering will require approval of storm water calculations and drainage plans prior 
to issuance of any building permits.           
 
Street trees have been provided along Thoroughfare Road.  A Type B 15’ landscape buffer is required along all 
property lines and vehicular surface area landscape requirements must be met.  Staff is working with the 



7 
 
 
 
 

applicant to ensure landscape requirements are met per the requirements of the City’s Unified Development 
Ordinance. 
 
Commercial dumpsters will be utilized for garbage collection.  Staff will ensure that dumpster corals are 
properly constructed and appropriately screened from off-site views in accordance with City standards.   
 
Building elevations have been submitted and indicate the proposed buildings will be constructed of brick veneer 
and fiber-cement shake siding.  Roofing materials will be architectural shingles.  Staff will ensure all multi-
family development design standards are met per the requirements of the City’s Unified Development 
Ordinance prior to issuance of any building permits.      
 
The subject property is located outside the City limits.  Since City utilities are located within 1,000 ft. of the 
site, the developer will be required to connect to City water and sewer, as well as, annex into the City limits. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham opened the Public Hearing. The following people spoke: 
 

1. Mark Morgan, MC Morgan and Associates, 2408 Lake Oak, High Point, shared information concerning 
Phase II of Tiffany Gardens.  

2. Alex Economy, 320 Longs Plant Farm Road, shared concerns about drainage and flooding potential of 
Phase II of Tiffany Gardens. 

 
No one else spoke and the Public Hearing was closed.  
 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on 
August 2, 2021. 
 

Street Name Change – Poplar Street to Dr. H.E. McNair Street. Public Hearing Held.  A petition to 
change the name of a section of Poplar Street to “Dr. H.E. McNair Street has been submitted.  The section of 
Poplar Street runs from Harris Street intersection northwards approximately 1,150 linear feet to its terminus.   
The petitioner has indicated that he wishes to change the name of the street in honor of the late Rev. Dr. 
Howard E. McNair who was the pastor of 57 plus years of New Stoney Hill United Holey Church, which 
directly abuts this section of Poplar Street at 1003 Poplar Street.   
 
The City is authorized to change street names within the city limits according to provision set forth in General 
Statues.  While the statues are very general in nature, the City follows the same procedures used by the County 
in renaming streets.   
 
The proposed name change has been sent to the County Planning Department to insure that the name “Dr. H.E. 
McNair Street” would not result in any confusion as it relates to provision of emergency services.  The County 
Planning Director has indicated that the County does not have any objection to the street name change which 
has been proposed.  City Fire has no issues with the request and City Engineering indicated the use of an 
individual’s full name is typically discouraged especially if the last name is available for use suggesting the use 
of “McNair Street”.   
 
A Notice of Public Hearing was advertised in the newspaper for two consecutive weeks.  The street section was 
posted and all adjacent owners were notified of the hearing by mail. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham opened the Public Hearing. The following person spoke:  
 

1. Trebor Jackson shared information concerning the proposed street name change and about Dr. H.E. 
McNair.    

 
No one else spoke and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on 
August 2, 2021. 

 
Public Comment Period.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham opened the public comment period.  The following 

people spoke: 
 
1. Alicia Pierce, 806 S. Taylor Street shared information concerning the July 12, 2021 work session 

items regarding the Police Department, HUB rental and voting procedures for the Mayor position.   



8 
 
 
 
 

2. Kaelon Williams shared concerns about flooding in West Haven.  
3. Delmus Martin shared information about religion and racism.  
4. Rose Dudley shared concerns about Day Point and current renovation issues. 
5. Sylvia Barnes shared information with Councilmember Polack concerning Jefferson Court.  
6. Shameka Rose shared concerns about Day Point renovations. 
7. Kaelon Williams shared concerns about Day Point renovations.       

 
Councilmember Matthews stepped out of the room at 7:59 pm and returned at 8:00 pm.   

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.   

 
Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent 

Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a 
roll call vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
discussed and considered separately.  In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be 
acted on with one motion and roll call vote.  Councilmember Polack moved the items on the Consent Agenda, 
Items F-K be approved as recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Jones and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.    
 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 

 
Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 412 East 

Walnut to Oliver Design Group, LLC.  Resolution Adopted. Staff has received an offer to purchase 
city/county owned property. 
 
Council must either accept or reject the offer, and if accepted authorize advertisement for upset bids (G.S. 
160A-266 and 160A-269). 
 
The following offer has been received for the sale of surplus real property under Negotiated offer, 
advertisement, and upset bid process (G.S.§160A-266(a) (3))  
 
412 East Walnut Street 
Offeror: Oliver Design Group, LLC 
Offer: $3,210.00 
Bid Deposit: $160.50 
Parcel #: 50440 Pin #: 3509057190 
Tax Value: $6,210.00 Zoning: R-9 
 
The offer is at least 50% of the tax value of the property. The bid deposit of 5% has been received in the form of 
a cashier’s check. 
 
The status of the entity has been confirmed “active” with the North Carolina Secretary of State. 
 
It was recommended that Council accept the offer on 412 East Walnut Street and if accepted, adopt the 
following entitled resolution authorizing Finance to advertise for upset bids. Consent Agenda Approval.  
Polack/Jones (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-56 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS” 
 

Center Street Jam Concert Series –Temporary Street Closure. Approved. The City of Goldsboro’s 
Downtown Development Dept., in conjunction with the Downtown Goldsboro Development Corporation looks 
forward to hosting the 20th annual Center Street Jam Summer Concert Series. The Center Street Jam is a 
community-favorite event, bringing crowds of 1500 – 3500 to enjoy live music, fellowship and food from local 
vendors. As always, Center Street Jam concerts are free, family-friendly and open to the public.  
 
The events will be hosted every other Thursday from 6:00pm – 9:00pm at The HUB in the 200 block of South 
Center Street. Event dates are July 22, August 5th, August 19th, September 2nd and September 17th (Friday). 
For the safety of event-goers, the Downtown Development Department and DGDC are requesting the closure of 
the northbound lane of South Center Street from Spruce to Chestnut and a partial closure of East Chestnut from 
Center Street to the Chestnut Street PD parking lot entrance from 4:30pm – 9:00pm.  
 



9 
 
 
 
 

As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 
addressed:  
 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments and Public Works Departments are to be involved in the logistical 

aspects of the Event. 
 
It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary closing of the northbound lane of South Center 
Street from Spruce to Chestnut Street and a partial closure of East Chestnut Street from Center Street to the 
Chestnut Street PD parking lot entrance, as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval.  Polack/Jones (6 Ayes) 
 

Sprinkler Fun Days – Temporary Street Closure. Approved.  The City of Goldsboro’s Downtown 
Development Dept., in partnership with the Goldsboro Fire Department will host their 11th annual Sprinkler 
Fun Days event series, providing supervised summer splash fun for all ages. As always, Sprinkler Fun Days are 
free, family-friendly and open to the public.  
 
The events will be hosted every Thursday from 3:00pm – 4:00pm on South Center Street from July 15th – 
August 19th. GFD will set up and staff the event in the northbound lane of South Center Street, between Spruce 
and Chestnut. The Downtown Development Department is requesting the closure of the northbound lane of 
South Center Street from Spruce to Chestnut Street from 2:30pm – 4:00pm.  
 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 
addressed:  
 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 

 
It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary closing of the northbound lane of South Center 
Street from Spruce to Chestnut Street as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval.  Polack/Jones (6 Ayes) 
 

Professional Engineering On-Call Services for 2019 Water Improvements Project. Resolution 
Adopted.  The Engineering Department provided a request for qualifications concerning professional on-call 
engineering services. The proposals addressed furnishing professional engineering services for various 
engineering projects (Water Treatment & Distribution, Wastewater Treatment & Distribution, Stormwater, 
Transportation, and Construction Inspection).  
 
At the June 7, 2021 City Council Meeting, The Wooten Company, CDM Smith, and WithersRavenel were 
selected for each category of engineering services for current and future projects. 
 
Staff requested The Wooten Company provide cost in reference to 2019 Water Line Replacement for the City 
of Goldsboro pertaining to undersized water mains. The proposed work will generally include the replacement 
of approximately 28,000 linear feet of 2-inch galvanized iron and 100 linear feet of 2-inch asbestos cement 
water mains with 6-inch PVC water mains, as well as other miscellaneous appurtenances such as water service 
reconnections and asphalt repair. 
  
The Wooten Company engineering services detailed as follows: 
 
Provide Preliminary Engineering Report 
 Lump Sum = $17,500.00 
 
Environmental Report 
 Lump Sum =     7,500.00   
      
 Total  = $25,000.00 
 
We have reviewed the financing of this project with the Finance Director and determined that the capital project 
budget (W1113) contains sufficient monies to authorize professional engineering services with The Wooten 
Company for 2019 Water System Improvements. 



10 
 
 
 
 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a Professional Services Agreement with The Wooten Company pertaining to 2019 Water System 
Improvements for an amount not to exceed $25,000. Consent Agenda Approval.  Polack/Jones (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION 2021-57 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE WOOTEN COMPANY FOR 2019 
WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS” 
 
Professional Engineering On-Call Services for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and 
Improvement. Resolution Adopted. The Engineering Department provided a request for qualifications 
concerning professional on-call engineering services. The proposals addressed furnishing professional 
engineering services for various engineering projects (Water Treatment & Distribution, Wastewater Treatment 
& Distribution, Stormwater, Transportation, and Construction Inspection).  
 
At the June 7, 2021 City Council Meeting, The Wooten Company, CDM Smith, and WithersRavenel were 
selected for each category of engineering services for current and future projects. 
 
Staff requested WithersRavenel provide cost in reference to Goldsboro Little/Big Cherry Pump Station 
Relocation and Improvement. 
  
 WithersRavenel engineering services detailed as follows: 
 
 Project Management 
 Lump Sum = $   6,000 
 
 Engineering Report 
 Lump Sum = $ 20,000 
 
 Environmental Information Documentation 
 Lump Sum = $   4,000 
      
 Total  = $ 30,000 
 
We have reviewed the financing of this project with the Finance Director and determined that the capital project 
budget (S1106) contains sufficient monies to authorize professional engineering services with WithersRavenel 
for Goldsboro Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a Professional Services Agreement with WithersRavenel pertaining to Goldsboro Little/Big Cherry 
Pump Station Relocation and Improvement for an amount not to exceed $30,000.  Consent Agenda Approval.  
Polack/Jones (6 Ayes)  
 
RESOLUTION 2021-58 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND WITHERS/RAVENEL FOR 
GOLDSBORO LITTLE/BIG CHERRY PUMP STATION RELOCATION AND IMPROVEMENT” 
 

Departmental Monthly Reports.  Accepted as Information.  The various departmental reports for June 
2021 were submitted for Council’s approval. It was recommended that Council accept the reports as 
information. Consent Agenda Approval.  Polack/Jones (6 Ayes) 
 

End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action. 
Z-5-21 Anita Yousif (R16 – O&I-1) – South side E. Ash Street between Barrow Court and Malloy 

Street. Ordinance Adopted. The applicant recently acquired the subject property which is currently zoned for 
residential use.   

 
The applicant requests a change of zone for the subject property from Residential (R-16) to Office and 
Institutional (O&I-1) for commercial development purposes. 
 
Frontage: 56 ft. (E. Ash St.) 



11 
 
 
 
 

Area:  22,504 sq. ft. or 0.52 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 
   
North:   General Business (GB); 
South:  Residential (R-6); 
East:  Neighborhood Business (NBCZ); and 
West:  Office & Institutional (O&I-1)  
 
The subject property has been used for residential purposes and consists of one unoccupied single-family 
dwelling of approximately 1,000 sq. ft.   
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Office and Institutional development for the property which is 
consistent with other properties in the area.  
Engineering:  The subject properties are not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.  City water and sewer 
utilities are available to serve the property. 
 
At the public hearing held June 21, 2021, no one appeared to speak for or against the request. 
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on June 28, 2021, recommended approval for the change of 
zone request from Residential (R-16) to Office and Institutional (O&I-1) finding the request consistent with the 
City of Goldsboro’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
 
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and find the request 
consistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan and; find the proposed zoning amendment is 
reasonable and in the public interest because zoning is compatible with adjacent properties within the 
surrounding areas and; adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from Residential (R-16) to 
Office and Institutional (O&I-1). 
 
Councilmember Jones stepped out of the room at 8:03 pm and returned at 8:07 pm.   
 
Councilmember Broadaway made a motion to approve item Z-5-21 Anita Yousif, the motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Polack.  A roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.  
 
ORDINANCE 2021-25 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

Z-6-21 FSC II, LLC. (Asphalt Plant) – North side of W. US 70 Hwy. between Perkins Mill Road 
and Springwood Drive. Ordinance Adopted. The applicant requests a change of zone for the subject property 
from General Business (GB) zoning district to General Industry Conditional Zoning (I-2CZ) limiting the use of 
the property to an asphalt plant.   

 
Frontage: +740 ft. (Thoroughfare Road) 
Depth:  +857 ft.  
Area: +16.02 Acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 
North:  General Industry (I-2)/General Business (GB) 
South: Residential (R-12/R-16), Office and Institutional (O&I-1); 
East: General Business (GB); and 
West: General Business (GB)    
 
On September 4, 2007, Goldsboro City Council approved an ordinance to rezone property located directly north 
of subject property from General Business (GB) and Residential (R-20A) to General Industry (I-2).  Although 
the land was not totally compliant with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan, the proposal was considered 
compatible with existing zoning patterns in the area. 
 
On October 1, 2007, a request for a Conditional Use Permit was approved by City Council to allow the 
construction and operation of a concrete plant for the same property.  In addition, site and landscape plans were 
also approved with the following modifications: 
 

1. Modification of minimum lot frontage requirement from 50 ft. to 0 ft. 



12 
 
 
 
 

2. Modification of minimum distance requirement from residentially-zoned or developed property from 
1,000 ft. to approximately 925 ft. and zero (0) ft. 

 
Lastly, required street trees and sidewalk installation for the concrete plant site was deferred by City Council on 
June 2, 2008.  The owner of subject property was required to install street trees and City sidewalks once the 
subject property was developed or sold in the future. 
 
The property is currently vacant. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Medium Density Residential (MDR) development. 
 
The applicant has submitted a site-specific plan for the Conditional Zoning request to limit the use of the 
property to an asphalt plant.   
 
The preliminary site plan indicates the property adjacent to US HWY 70 West and accessed by a private 50 ft. 
wide paved asphalt ingress, egress, regress and utility easement.  Three proposed access drives are shown along 
the easement providing an entrance and exit for employees and customers of the site, as well as, heavy 
commercial trucking operations associated with asphalt production.  Since the property has no frontage along 
US HWY 70 West, a modification will be necessary. 
 
Structures proposed and identified for the site consist of an on-site 750 sq. ft. office, a 750 sq. ft.  laboratory, 
above-ground fuel storage tanks, a 600 sq. ft. storage shed, tower silos, hoppers, crushers, bins and conveyors 
for aggregate production, distribution and storage.  
 
Parking for the site requires 1 space per employee, plus 2 visitor spaces, plus 1 space for each vehicle stored on 
site.  A total of 10 parking spaces have been identified on the site plan to include 1 handicap accessible parking 
space. 
 
External City sidewalks are required for new commercial development. The applicant will be required to install 
sidewalks or pay $13,158 based on approximately 730 ft. of road frontage along HWY. 70. 
Internal concrete sidewalks are shown providing access to building entrances through sloped ramps and 
handicap accessible walkways. 
 
A commercial lighting plan has not been submitted.  Since the subject property is located adjacent to 
residentially-zoned and developed properties, the developer will be required to submit a lighting plan in 
compliance with the City’s Commercial Lighting ordinance. 
 
The subject property is located in the City’s one-mile extraterritorial jurisdiction.  City water and sewer are not 
available to serve the subject property.  Water will be provided by Wayne County’s Fork Township.  Sewer will 
be provided by an on-site sewage disposal or pump system.  The property is not located within a special flood 
hazard area or within a City Watershed protected area.  City Engineering will require approval of storm water 
calculations and drainage plans prior to the issuance of any building permits.           
 
Street trees have been shown along the western property line where an existing 60 ft. private and paved ingress, 
egress, regress and utility easement provides access to a concrete plant directly north of the property.  A 
required type A, 10’ ft. wide landscape buffer is shown along the northern property line.  A type B, 15 ft. wide 
landscape buffer is required along the eastern property line.  However, due to two existing natural gas utility 
easements along the eastern property line, the applicant is requesting a modification of the type A buffer yard 
requirement.   
 
Commercial dumpsters will be utilized for garbage collection.  Staff will ensure that dumpster corals are 
properly constructed and appropriately screened from off-site views in accordance with City standards.   
Community-Sensitive Use:  Asphalt manufacturing is classified as a community sensitive use in the General 
Industry (I-2) zoning district.  As such, the City’s UDO requires that the entire area of the site shall be enclosed 
by a six foot high opaque fence set back one hundred feet from any public right of way or residentially 
developed or zoned property and/or fifty feet from any other adjacent property.  The applicant has proposed an 
8ft. in height opaque fence surrounding the proposed asphalt plant in accordance with City standards. 
 
In addition, the City’s UDO requires that the proposed asphalt plant be located at a minimum of 1,000 ft. from 
residentially-zoned or developed property.  The portion of the property to be used as an asphalt plant is 
approximately 450 ft. from property zoned Residential (R-12) to the east.  The northern most portion of the 



13 
 
 
 
 

property proposed for outdoor aggregate storage is directly adjacent to property zoned Residential (R-12).  A 
modification of the distance requirement from 1,000 ft. to 0 ft. will be necessary. 
 
Lastly, the applicant will be required to provide a statement with the plans indicating whether any 
manufacturing or processing operation will create smoke, offensive odor, dust, noise, fumes or vibrations 
beyond the lot lines of the proposed use. If one or more of such conditions exist, the developer shall explain 
what measures will be taken to mitigate such conditions to acceptable levels. 
 
At the public hearing held June 21, 2021, the attorney representing the applicant, the Vice-President of the 
applicant and the attorney representing the property owner appeared to speak in favor of the request.  No one 
appeared to speak in opposition of the request. 
 
Planning Commission at their meeting held June 28, 2021, recommended approval for the requested change of 
zone of the subject property from General Business (GB) zoning district to General Industry Conditional 
Zoning (I-2CZ) limiting the use of the property to an asphalt plant with the condition of providing additional 
landscaping along Highway 70 to provide additional screening.  Although, not consistent with the City of 
Goldsboro’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan, the Planning Commission’s recommendation found the proposed 
use to be compatible with adjacent properties within the surrounding area.  
 
The following modifications have been requested: 
 

1. Modification of road frontage along an improved public street of at least 50 ft. 
2. Modification of type A landscape buffer yard along eastern property line. 
3. Modification of distance requirement from residentially-zoned or developed property from 1,000 ft. to  

0 ft. 
 
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and find the proposed 
zoning amendment inconsistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan however, the proposed 
use is compatible with adjacent properties within the surrounding area and; find the proposed zoning 
amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because the zoning is compatible with adjacent properties 
within the surrounding areas and; adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from General 
Business (GB) zoning district to General Industry Conditional Zoning (I-2CZ) limiting the use of the property 
to an asphalt plant. 
 
Councilmember Polack made a motion to accept item m, Z-6-21 Asphalt Plant, the motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Broadaway.  A roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.  
 
ORDINANCE 2021-26 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

Z-8-21 – MLFL, Inc. - (Tiny Home Village) South side of S. Slocumb Street between Westbrook 
Road and Seymour Drive. Ordinance Adopted. The applicant requests a change of zone for the subject 
property from General Business, Residential Manufactured-Non-Conforming (GB/RM-NC) and General 
Industry (I-2) zoning district to Planned Unit Development Conditional Zoning (PUDCZ) limiting the use of the 
property to a 40-unit tiny home village.   
 
Planned Unit Developments are considered a separate zoning district and require rezoning approval. These 
mixed-use developments provide a voluntary alternative development procedure for relatively large tracts of 
land held under unified ownership that are planned and developed in a coordinated manner.   
 
Frontage: +372 ft. (Slocumb St.) 
  +492 ft. (Westbrook Rd.) 
Depth: +980 ft.  
Area: 590,392 sq. ft. or +13.6 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 
North:  General Business (GB) 
South: General Industry (I-2); 
East: General Business (GB)/General Industry (I-2); and 
West: General Business, Residential Manufactured-Non- Conforming (GB/RM-NC)/General Industry (I-2)  
 



14 
 
 
 
 

On February 6, 2012, the Goldsboro City Council concurred with the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission and adopted an Order approving a Conditional-Use Permit to allow the operation of a privately-
owned cemetery (Seymour Memorial Park) upon the subject property.  In addition, the Council approved site 
and landscape plans detailing the operation with a modification of the requirement for vehicular surface area 
landscaping. 
 
Now, the owner has decided to cease development of the property for a cemetery and repurpose the property for 
residential development purposes focusing upon the chronically homeless and unsheltered residents of the City 
of Goldsboro.  
 
The property is occupied by three (3) metal buildings formally proposed as covered pavilions for employees and 
customers of the private cemetery operation.   The remaining portion of the property is clear and vacant. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Commercial and Industrial development for the property. 
 
The applicant has submitted a concept plan for the Planned Unit Conditional Zoning request to limit the use of 
the property to a tiny home village.  The applicant has requested a waiver of the City’s site plan requirement.  If 
the zoning is approved, a North Carolina registered engineer is required to design the site plan in accordance 
with City’s UDO and subject to City Council approval. 
 
The proposed tiny home village will serve as transitional housing for use by individuals suffering from chronic 
homelessness throughout the City of Goldsboro.  Approximately forty (40) one, two and three - bedroom tiny 
homes are proposed for the site.  Each home will be built to the North Carolina Building Code with an average 
of 900 sq. ft. of floor space per unit. 
 
Amenities proposed for the village include on-site 24/7 security, on-site facilities for medical services, mental 
health and substance abuse treatment, education, job training and placement services, exercise and fitness 
equipment, housing for pets and walking trails for use by residents of the village.   
 
The concept plan indicates the property fronts along S. Slocumb Street and Westbrook Road.   Two existing 
curb cuts provide ingress and egress to Slocumb Street and Westbrook Road.  A 30 ft. wide access drive is 
proposed as the main entrance off Slocumb Street.  Another 30 ft. wide access drive off Westbrook Road will 
provide additional access to the site.  
 
City water and sewer are available to serve the subject property.  A portion of the property is located within 
special flood hazard areas known as the City’s 100 and 500-floodplain.  City Engineering requirements 
pertaining to the floodplain, storm water calculations and drainage shall be approved by staff prior to the 
issuance of any development permits.   
 
The subject property is within the 65-70 dnl noise overlay zone of Seymour Johnson Air Force Base.  Base 
officials have been contacted regarding the proposed development.  Once a response is received from Base 
officials, the applicant will be notified of any compliance issues in need of resolve before development can 
commence in the future. 
 
At the public hearing held June 21, 2021, the applicant, property owner and two other persons appeared to 
speak in favor of the request.  No one appeared to speak in opposition of the request. 
 
Planning Commission at their meeting held June 28, 2021, recommended approval for the requested change of 
zone of the subject property from General Business, Residential Manufactured-Non-Conforming (GB/RM-NC) 
and General Industry (I-2) zoning district to Planned Unit Development Conditional Zoning (PUDCZ) limiting 
the use of the property to a 40-unit tiny home village.  Although, not consistent with the City of Goldsboro’s 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan, the Planning Commission’s recommendation found the proposed use to be 
compatible with adjacent properties within the surrounding area. 
  
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and find the proposed 
zoning amendment inconsistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan however, the proposed 
use is compatible with adjacent properties within the surrounding area and; find the proposed zoning 
amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because the zoning is compatible with adjacent properties 
within the surrounding areas and; adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from General 
Business, Residential Manufactured-Non-Conforming (GB/RM-NC) and General Industry (I-2) zoning district 
to Planned Unit Development Conditional Zoning (PUDCZ) limiting the use of the property to a 40-unit tiny 
home village. 



15 
 
 
 
 

 
Councilmember Matthews made a motion to approve the Planning Commission’s recommendation, the motion 
was seconded by Councilmember Polack. Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Jones, Polack and Matthews 
voted for the motion.  Councilmember Broadaway voted against the motion.  Councilmember Aycock lost 
connection at 8:20 pm therefore was not available to vote. The motion passed 4:1.  
 
ORDINANCE 2021-27 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

City Manager’s Report.  Mr. Salmon shared information concerning Parks and Recreation Programs. 
He also shared information about Part I Crime (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, 
Larceny, Motor Vehicle Theft, and Arson) rates being lower this year compared to last year.  

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendation.  Councilmember Polack read the 

following Proclamation:  
 
Proclamation –Annual National Night Out.  Councilmember Polack proclaimed Tuesday, August 3, 

2021 as the Annual National Night Out in the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina and called upon citizens of the 
City of Goldsboro to join the National Association of Town Watch in supporting the “Annual National Night 
Out” on August 3, 2021. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham read the following Resolution:  
 

Resolution of the Board of Directors of the North Carolina League of Municipalities. In Recognition And 
Appreciation Of Lasting Contributions To Municipal Government, This Meritorious Individual Lifetime 
Membership Award Is Presented To Chuck Allen.  
WHEREAS, Chuck Allen has made lasting contributions to the City of Goldsboro, and cities and towns 
throughout North Carolina; and WHEREAS, Chuck Allen has shown unrivaled dedication to municipal 
government and made substantial contributions to help cities and towns improve the lives of their residents; and 
WHEREAS, Chuck Allen’s faithful service to this state and its cities and towns has set an example to all, as 
seen in his tireless work and leadership on behalf of the North Carolina League of Municipalities Board of 
Directors, Military Host Cities Coalition and Metropolitan Mayors Coalition; and WHEREAS, Chuck Allen, in 
his more than two decades as a member of the Goldsboro City Council and Mayor of Goldsboro, has been 
instrumental in seeing the city’s downtown transformed, its relationship with Seymour Johnson Air Force Base 
grow stronger, and the local economy flourish; and WHEREAS, Chuck Allen, through his leadership, has 
ensured that North Carolina’s relationship with the U.S. military has remained as strong as any state in the 
country and, through his work with state legislators, has assisted North Carolina cities and towns in gaining 
resources and maintaining the local authority to address the unique needs of each; and WHERAS, Chuck Allen 
has championed bringing people together in common purpose to better this state, as seen in his 2018 statement 
to state leaders at NCLM’s Town & State Dinner: “We are one North Carolina, and we’ve got to work toward 
being one North Carolina;” and WHEREAS, Chuck Allen, during his time on the NCLM Board of Directors, 
has helped transform the organization into a modern advocacy and service organization with clear purpose and 
the ability to connect with state leaders to advance policies that keep municipalities strong; and WHEREAS, 
Chuck Allen has worked ceaselessly at the state and local level to create job growth, economic vitality and 
improve citizens’ quality of life; NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the NCLM Board of Directors, 
on this 6th day of July, 2021, formally acknowledges and extends its sincere gratitude to Chuck Allen and 
presents to him this Meritorious Lifetime Membership in recognition and appreciation of lasting contributions 
to municipal government.  Adopted this day, the 6th of July, 2021, in the City of Raleigh, North Carolina.   
Karen Alexander, President, North Carolina League of Municipalities, on behalf of the NCLM Board of 
Directors 

  
Councilmember Matthews had no comment. 
 
Councilmember Polack thanked everyone for their prayers during his absence at the last meeting while 

he was dealing with a personal issue. He also shared information about his absence at that meeting. He 
acknowledged Dr. Tommel Hayes on his accomplishments for receiving his doctoral degree.     

 
Councilmember Aycock regained connection at 8:24 pm. 
 
Councilmember Broadaway acknowledged Mr. Rice’s involvement with the homeless and shared his 

reasons for voting against the Tiny Home Village item.   
 



16 
 
 
 
 

Councilmember Jones thanked her constituents for their encouragement and for sharing their concerns. 
She also spoke to Mr. Rice about homeless issues. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham spoke to Mr. Rice about the homeless and his Tiny Home Village item.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham acknowledged Mr. Edward Cromartie to speak; he spoke in support of Mr. 

Thomas Rice.  
 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:36 p.m. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       David Ham   
       Mayor Pro Tem    
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Laura Getz, MMC/NCCMC     
       City Clerk  



Item________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

AUGUST 2, 2021 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset 
Bids for 1003 N. George Street to Melissa Bynum Gill 

BACKGROUND: Council approved the sale of 1003 N. George on 3/15/21 to Ms. Edna 
Burns and was approved by the County after no upset bids were received. 
Ms. Burns changed her mind about buying the property on 7/16/21.  On 
7/22/21, staff received an offer to purchase this city/county owned 
property.  Council must either accept or reject the offer, and if accepted 
authorize advertisement for upset bids (G.S. 160A-266 and 160A-269). 

DISCUSSION: The following offers have been received for the sale of surplus real 
property under Negotiated offer, advertisement, and upset bid process 
(G.S. §160A-266(a) (3)) 

1003 N. George Street 
Offeror:  Melissa Gill 
Offer:  $2,020.00 
Bid Deposit: $101.00 
Parcel #:  48992  Pin #: 2690902685 
Tax Value: $4,040.00  Zoning: R-6 

The offer is at least 50% of the tax value of the property. The bid deposit of 
5% has been received in the form of a money order. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council, by motion: 

1. Accept or reject offer on 1003 N. George Street from Ms. Melissa Gill.

2. If accepted, adopt attached resolution authorizing Finance to advertise
for upset bids.

Date:   _______________________________________________ 
Catherine F. Gwynn, Finance Director 

Date: 
Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager 

7/26/2021

C



RESOLUTION NO. 2021- _____ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain real property at 1003 N. 

George  Street (Pin #2690902685); and  
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the city to sell real property by upset bid, 

after receipt of an offer for the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of 

$2,020.00 (Two Thousand Twenty Dollars and no/100) submitted by Melissa Bynum Gill (Offeror); and 
 
WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on his/her offer in the amount of 

$101.00 (One Hundred One Dollars and no/100); 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 

that: 
 

1) The City council declares this property as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of North 

Carolina General Statute § 160A-269. 
3) The Finance Director shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published in a newspaper of general 

circulation within its jurisdiction. The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the offer, and 
shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

4) Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to the 
office of the Finance Director at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 during normal business hours 
within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the 10-day period, the Finance 
Director shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new offer. If there is more 
than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer. 

5) If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Finance Director shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be 
published, and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid 
having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City Council.  

6) A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent (10%) of the first 
$1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that offer.  

7) A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent (5%) of 
the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s check, or certified check. The city will return the 
deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying 
higher bid is received. The city will return the deposit of the final high bidder at closing. 

8) The terms of the final sale are:  
a) City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30 

days after the final upset bid period has passed. 
b) The Wayne County Board of Commissioners must approve the final sale by concurrence after final 

approval by City Council.  
c) Buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing. 
d) Buyer must pay closing costs. 

9) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is 
accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 



10) If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby 
accepted. City staff is authorized to seek concurrence from the Wayne County Board of Commissioners 
and upon such approval, the appropriate city officials are authorized to execute the instruments necessary 
to convey the property to Offeror. 

 
This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this _________________ day of 

___________________, 2021. 
 

 
 
      _____________________________   
      Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 
 
 

Attest: _________________________  
City Clerk    

 



N

GE
OR

GE

ST

FUSSELL

ST

PEARSON 

ST

N
VIR

GIN
IA

ST

MURRAY 

ST308
306

1103

1008

307

904

305

1109

1102

310312

1105

1014

1111

1100

1107

308

1010

309

1006

1012

306

1106

1104

310

309

1101

305

311

.

Address  1003 N George St
PIN #  2690902685

Standard Lot

380'

430' 19
0'







7/26/2021 Appraisal Card

realestate.waynegov.com/ITSNet/AppraisalCard.aspx?idP=1798153&Action=Auto 1/1

WAYNE COUNTY 7/26/2021 9:52:36 AM
CITY OF GOLDSBORO        WAYNE COUNTY Return/Appeal Notes:   2690902685
1003 N GEORGE ST UNIQ ID 48992
75254500   ID NO: 12000076002041

CITY - GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100)       CARD NO. 1 of 1  
Reval Year: 2019 Tax Year: 2021 N GEORGE ST 1.000 LT  SRC=  
Appraised by on 01801 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT TW-12 C-01 EX-5AT- LAST ACTION 20170729
CONSTRUCTION DETAIL MARKET VALUE  DEPRECIATION CORRELATION OF VALUE

TOTAL POINT VALUE  
BUILDING ADJUSTMENTS
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR
TOTAL QUALITY INDEX  

USE MOD
Eff.
Area QUAL

BASE
RATE RCN EYB AYB CREDENCE TO  

01 00       % GOOD  DEPR. BUILDING VALUE - CARD 0

TYPE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL  

STORIES:  

 

DEPR. OB/XF VALUE - CARD 0
MARKET LAND VALUE - CARD 4,040
TOTAL MARKET VALUE - CARD 4,040
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - CARD 4,040
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - PARCEL 4,040
TOTAL PRESENT USE VALUE - PARCEL 0
TOTAL VALUE DEFERRED - PARCEL 0
TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE - PARCEL 4,040

PRIOR
BUILDING VALUE 0
OBXF VALUE 0
LAND VALUE 4,040
PRESENT USE VALUE 0
DEFERRED VALUE 0
TOTAL VALUE 4,040

PERMIT
CODE DATE NOTE NUMBER AMOUNT

ROUT: WTRSHD:
SALES DATA

OFF.
RECORD DATE DEED

TYPE Q/UV/I
INDICATE SALES

PRICEBOOK PAGE MOYR
02934 0737 5 2012 WD C V 0
01759 0296 2 2000 WD U I 0
01708 0885 1 1999 WD U I 500
01565 0113 12 1996 WD U I 0
01565 0042 12 1996 WD U I 4500
00735 0407 1 1969 WD U I 0

HEATED AREA  
NOTES

C-FORM FOR 1988 
ADJ PER SHAPE

SUBAREA

TYPE
GS

AREA %
RPL
CS

FIREPLACE   
SUBAREA
TOTALS    

CODE QUALITY DESCRIPTION LTH WTH UNITS
UNIT
PRICE

ORIG %
COND BLDG# L/B

SIZE
FACT AYB EYB

ANN DEP
RATE OVR

%
COND

OB/XF DEPR.
VALUE

TOTAL OB/XF VALUE 0

BUILDING DIMENSIONS    
LAND INFORMATION

HIGHEST AND
BEST USE

USE
CODE

LOCAL
ZONING

FRON
TAGE DEPTH

DEPTH /
SIZE

LND
MOD

COND
FACT

OTHER ADJUSTMENTS
AND NOTES 
  RF   AC   LC  TO  OT

ROAD
TYPE

LAND UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
LAND
UNITS

UNT
TYP

TOTAL
ADJST

ADJUSTED
UNIT PRICE

LAND
VALUE

LAND
NOTES

0100 0100 R-6 114 380 1.1700 2 0.5000
  

 60.00 114.000 FF 0.590 35.40 4036 

TOTAL MARKET LAND DATA   4,040  
TOTAL PRESENT USE DATA     



ITEM_____________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

AUGUST 2, 2021 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Operating Budget Amendment FY21-22 

BACKGROUND: As part of the FY21-22 Budget Ordinance, the City includes a provision to 
allow for unfulfilled purchase orders to be carried over and appropriated in 
the new fiscal year.  (G.S. §159-13). 

DISCUSSION: Please find attached an ordinance amending the annual operating budget 
for fiscal year 2022 for the amount of appropriations necessary to re-
establish encumbrances for the individual outstanding purchase orders as 
of June 30, 2021 that we intend to honor in the new fiscal year (FY 2022).  
Also, enclosed is a purchase order rollover listing by fund and includes a 
brief description of the items/services.  Departments must submit rollover 
requests in late July after submitting final invoices for June 30 to allow 
Finance a chance to clear out prior year bill payments.  It was requested 
that rollover requests should be more than $5,000.  Also, please find 
attached a fund balance appropriated analysis reflecting the Purchase Order 
Rollovers. 

Items/services on the list represent construction contracts or service 
contracts that require significant time to completion or implementation 
which extends beyond the boundaries of the annual operating budget year 
from July 1 through June 30.  

Purchase orders for project funds are presented for informational purposes 
only and are not included in the attached ordinance as they are not annual 
operating type funds. 

The Local Government Commission of the State Treasurer’s Office 
recommends following the method of Reserve for Encumbrances that the 
City uses above.  The other acceptable method offered requires the City to 
hold open the prior fiscal year to account for encumbrances.  Although it is 
an acceptable method, the LGC does not recommend the use of this 
method. 

Analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance (Operating Funds Only) 
GENERAL FUND 

Date Description Adopted
6/18/2021 Ord 2021-11 FY21-22 Adopted Budget -$               

Current Year Appropriations -$               

FY20-21 Purchase Order Rollovers 156,632.76$    

Proposed 156,632.76$    

Current Year with Proposed 156,632.76$    

D



 
 

 
UTILITY FUND 

 
Date Description Adopted

6/18/2021 Ord 2021-11 FY21-22 Adopted Budget -$               

Current Year Appropriations -$               

FY20-21 Purchase Order Rollovers 391,761.27$    
Proposed 391,761.27$    

Current Year with Proposed 391,761.27$    

 
 
 

Analysis of Purchase Order Rollovers by Fund (FY21 to FY22)

General Fund 156,632.76$         
Utility Fund 391,761.27           

Total Operating Funds 548,394.03$         

Herman Park Center 377,950.00$         
Parks & Recreation Capital Project FY19-FY24 93,151.84$           
2018 Street Bonds 54,387.89             
Police Evidence & Fire Station Renovation 66,551.32             
Federal & State Forfeiture 216.00                  
JAG 16,018.79             
TIGER Streetscape 31,559.20             
FEMA-GO Source Capture FS1/2/3/5 215,723.60           
Phase IV Sewer Rehab SRF 1,647,691.59        
Sewer Rehab SRF W-17-0110 446,821.36           
Golden Leaf Stormwater & Sewer Infrastructure 421,285.39           
Water Lines/Booster Pump SRF WIF-1938 17,261.40             

Total Project Funds 3,388,618.38$      

Total All Fund Types 3,937,012.41$      

 
 
 



 
 
 
   Rolling Stock FY21 Funded with Debt Proceeds 

Also included with this amendment is the re-appropriation of capital expenditure 
items from FY21-22 in the General Fund in the amount of $438,330.00.  The 
rolling stock financing with BB&T was closed on July 9th, and since we were not 
able to close before the end of fiscal year 2021 the capital items that were 
unencumbered lapsed at June 30th.  These items will be funded with revenue from 
debt proceeds in FY22.  The items consist of the following:  
 

Police 2021 Dodge Charger $23,597 
Police 2021 Jeep Compass $19,533 
Solid Waste 2021 Freightliner $200,000 
Solid Waste Leaf Truck $135,000 
Streets E-55 Bobcat Mini Excavator $60,200 
Total General Fund  $438,330 

 
     

    RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council, by motion: 
1. Adopt the attached FY21-22 Operating Budget amendment. 

 
 
Date:     _______________________________________________ 
     Catherine F. Gwynn, Finance Director 
 
    
Date:              
     Tim Salmon, City Manager 

7/26/2021



P.O. # Vendor Name
Remaining 

Balance For? Department Head Justification for Rollover

P2101092 NAFECO $9,642.13 Firemen Turnout Gear

 Turn out gear is required to be replaced every 10 years per NFPA and this will 
retain our replacement plan to ensure we stay within required guidelines. The 
gear was ordered for new hires when the purchase order was received in the 
first week of May. This turnout gear is built to specifications and with COVID 
slowdowns is now requiring around 180 days for build. After speaking to my 
vendor, ours should ship October/November time frame. This PO also meets 
the requirements for rollover.

P2101172
Newton's Fire & Safety 
Equipment $12,847.37 1 3/4" Fire Hose, 2 1/2" Fire Hose, 3" Fire Hose

Fire Hose - we had over 75 sections of hose that we have to discard due to 
NFPA recommendations. This hose was all built prior to 1985. We typically do 
not order hose until after our annual required testing. Hose was ordered after 
receipt of the PO around 5/25/2021. Vendor advises hose should be shipped 
around September/October, the delay is due to a delay in the metal couplings. 
This PO also meets the requirements for rollover. 

E0000002 City of Goldsboro  $20,000.00 BANNER SELF SERVICE MODULE
Necessary to evaluate payroll system for use of Banner Self Service, change in 
payroll schedule, and online time entry

P2101214 MCCI,LLC $13,562.60
Laserfiche Avante Named Full User w/ Web 
Client SL

We need to roll this PO.  It was invoiced incorrectly, which has delayed our 
processing of the payment.  

All the licenses and associated items were received in the last FY, it’s just 
sorting our their invoicing that has caused the issues. Once we get the correct 
invoice, we should be able to make payment.

P2100293
Quest Corporation of 
America, Inc. $13,857.81 GWTA Marketing & Public Relations - Year 2

Have a contract for services with Quest and ends June 30, 2022 and contains 
an option to extend for up to two one-year periods.  

P2007216 Galls, LLC $1,834.12 Ballistic Vests

 Galls recently completed the shipment of bullet-resistant ballistic vests.  We 
received the vests in June 2021 and the order has just been marked as “received” 
in the system. These vests were for either new employees or were replacement 
vests for those that were expiring.  

P2100876 Galls, LLC $17,678.46 Police Body Equipment 

Galls recently completed the shipment of bullet-resistant ballistic vests.  We 
received the vests in June 2021 and the order has just been marked as 
“received” in the system. These vests were for either new employees or were 
replacement vests for those that were expiring.  

P2101206 Dana Safety Supply $7,640.84
NCQ4238 Win .40 S&W 180 Gr. FMJ/50 Rnd 
Box

 GPD has not received or taken possession of this ammunition.  Due to the 
pandemic, most government ammunition orders are taking a very long time to 
fulfill.  This order has the possibility of not being received for 18 months from 
the date that it was ordered.  This purchase may rollover next year too.

P2101207 Dana Safety Supply $13,083.28
NCRA223BSTAY Win 55 Gr Suprm Ball 
Slvrtip/100Rd CS

 GPD has not received or taken possession of this ammunition.  Due to the 
pandemic, most government ammunition orders are taking a very long time to 
fulfill.  This order has the possibility of not being received for 18 months from 
the date that it was ordered.  This purchase may rollover next year too.

P2101140 Pinnacle Trailer Sales, Inc $16,069.71
REPAIR TRAILER HYD & MECHANICAL ISSUES E-
855

 Work on the trailer was completed this week.  Should be picking up the trailer 
next week and receiving an invoice for payment.

P2101129
State Electric Supply 
Company $5,787.87

14-ft ALU pole w/ anchor bolts & LED 
Pedestrian Light

 Funds to replace the light pole on Walnut St that was taken out by a car.  
Insurance claim – Nona has paperwork.  It takes several weeks to fabricate and 
deliver the pole.  

P2101200
OTTO Environmental 
Systems LLC $7,495.19 95 Gal refuse carts Received the containers last week and the invoice should arrive shortly 

P2101199 Nu Life Environmental, Inc. $17,133.38
Front load 8cy dumpsters, Front load 4cy 
dumpsters

 Should receive the dumpsters next week and the invoice soon afterwards for 
payment.     

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $156,632.76

P2007464 WithersRavenel, Inc. $15,540.00 AWIA & SWPP PLANS
Americas Water Infrastructure Act: ERP and Source Water Protection Plans are 
scheduled for completion in Fall 2021

P2100021
STANTEC CONSULTING 
SERVICES INC $10,085.00 WTP Rate Study Analysis - Fiscal Year 2021 Waiting on final technical memo from FY21Study.

P2100021
STANTEC CONSULTING 
SERVICES INC $10,085.00 WTP Rate Study Analysis - Fiscal Year 2021 Waiting on final technical memo from FY21Study.

P2101036
Azteca Systems, Inc. 
(Cityworks) $64,103.38

Cityworks Implementation for Asset 
Management -

Ongoing project with I.T. and CityWorks to add asset management and CMMS to 
the facilities.

P2100823
Aqua-Aerobic Systems,  
Inc. $13,051.52

Remove and Replace Sand Media For Sand 
Filter #3 Sand Filter, sand replacement. Job is now complete, but waiting on final bill.

Purchase Order Rollovers FY21 to FY22



P.O. # Vendor Name
Remaining 

Balance For? Department Head Justification for Rollover

Purchase Order Rollovers FY21 to FY22

P2101088
Cappell Generator 
Services, LLC $19,985.37

Generator for Big Cherry Pump Station - Remove 
& Generator automatic transfer switch failed, waiting on arrival of parts. 

P2101148
Cappell Generator 
Services, LLC $7,086.27

EMERGENCY REPAIR - Big Cherry Lift Station-
Remove Waiting on parts to repair alongside transfer switch.  

P2100983 BDP Industries, Inc. $18,947.75 75 x 55cc Danfoss 24 Volt Pump +65cc Pump
Project was complete for 2-days, until hydraulic pump failed. Waiting on new 
part and BDP to fly back down and repair hydraulic component. 

P2100795
Xylem Dewatering 
Solutions, Inc. $22,308.75

Emergency 15" Sewer Bypass Rental 1481 W. 
Ash

 We stopped bypass pumping on 7/7/21 and using their service 2 weeks ago 
and should receive a final invoice next week.

P2101025 Grady's Masonry $9,984.86 Install Double Door, Masonry CMU and brick
Received the invoice last week, but it was not itemized.  Grady’s Masonry is 
resubmitting an itemized invoice—should have it next week.  

P2101026
Deacon Jones Ford 
Lincoln, Inc $52,979.00 Ford F-550 4x4 192" Wheelbase Oxford White

 Funds to purchase the vehicle/chassis component of the Valve Maintenance 
Truck that was approved through council.  We believe the chip shortage has 
delayed delivery to the company selected to install the service 
body/maintenance equipment components.     

P2101085 EH Wachs Company $147,604.37
77-000-58- VMS(RH) Single turner valve 
maintenance

Funds to install the service body/maintenance equipment component of the 
Valve Maintenance Truck.   

TOTAL UTILITY FUND $391,761.27

P2100411 T A Loving Company $377,950.00
Phase I Design-Herman Park Center RES-2018-
87

P2100987 RCP Shelters, Inc. $33,951.84 Shelter for Bryan Multi Sports Complex

P2101067
Jarman Construction Co 
Inc $59,200.00 Install Splashpad at Bryan Multi-Sport Complex

P2100188
Weaver's Asphal & 
Maintenance Compa $54,387.89

2020 Street Paving Improvements Proj. - 
FB2020-001

P2100719 The Picket Fence $8,582.70 Lockers for Station 4

P2006286
Brady Integrated Security, 
Inc. $20,968.62 BUILDING SECURITY (DOOR CONTROLS ETC)

P2101227 Piedmont Service Group $37,000.00 Repair Chiller at PD

P2100160
Highland Canine Training, 
LLC $216.00

Dual Purpose Narc Detection/Patrol Handler 
School

P2007331
LEA-AID Acquisition 
Company $64.05

GANG UNIT EQUIPMENT (CAMERA, COMPUTERS, 
ETC)

P2007152 Craig's Firearm Supply, Inc. $15,954.74 17 PATROL RIFLES

P2100777 David E. Gall, Architect P.A. $31,559.20 Concourse Roof Addition-GWTA Transfer Center

P2101105
Air Cleaning Specialists, 
Inc. $215,723.60

Source Capture Diesel Exhaust Plymovent 
System

P2006289 T A Loving Company $1,633,914.87 PHASE IV SEWER REHAB SRF

P2006538 McKim & Creed, Inc. $13,776.72
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING - PHASE IV 
SEWER REHAB SRF

P2007472 The Wooten Company $19,167.66
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING - SRF SWR (BIG 
DITCH)

P2100330 AM Liner East, Inc. $427,653.70 FB2020-002 Wastewater System Improvements

P2006646 Herring & Rivenbark, Inc. $421,285.39
GOLDEN LEAF STORMWATER & SEWER INFRAST 
PROJECT

E0000007 The Wooten Company $14,629.00
ENGINEEERING FOR WATER SYSTEM 
IMPROVEMENTS (WIF-1938) W1111

P2100312 The Wooten Company $2,632.40 Engineer Services- Amend. No. 1-Water System

TOTAL UTILITY FUND $3,388,618.38
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $3,937,012.41



 

 1 

               
ORDINANCE NO. 2021 - 

 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE    
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2021-22 FISCAL YEAR 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro adopted the FY2020-21 Annual 
Operating Budget on June 18, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, amendments may become necessary as circumstances arise, and it is necessary to 
amend the General Fund and Utility Fund; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City follows the preferred practice of the Local Government Commission 
(Division of the State Treasurer’s Office) which recommends following the Reserve for Encumbrances 
method to honor prior year encumbrances; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate funds for expenditures to provide for continuing 
contracts previously entered into in the prior fiscal year but not filled prior to June 30, 2021, and this will 
be funded with an appropriation of fund balance in each respective fund; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate funds for fiscal year 2021 for rolling stock in the 
Police department and Public Works division of Solid Waste, and this will be funded with revenue from 
debt proceeds. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, that: 
 

GENERAL FUND Current Amended Difference

Information Technology (1030)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 2,126,361.00$        2,126,361.00$         -$                      
Software License Fees 661,265.00             694,827.60              33,562.60             

Total Expend. - Information Tech. 2,787,626.00$        2,821,188.60$         33,562.60$           

Garage (1114)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 2,057,810.00$        2,057,810.00$         -$                      
Garage Credits (1115) (1,512,425.00)         (1,512,425.00)          -                        
Outside Repairs 120,000.00             136,069.71              16,069.71             

Total Expend. - Garage 665,385.00$           681,454.71$            16,069.71$           

Building & Grounds (1133)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 740,826.00$           740,826.00$            -$                      
Repairs (Insurance Claims) -                          5,787.87                  5,787.87               

Total Expend. - Building & Grounds 740,826.00$           746,613.87$            5,787.87$             

Planning (3151)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 988,893.00$           988,893.00$            -$                      
Transportation Planning Grant 289,372.00             303,229.81              13,857.81             

Total Expend. - Planning 1,278,265.00$        1,292,122.81$         13,857.81$           

Street Maintenance (4134)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 932,691.00$           932,691.00$            -$                      
Excavator -                          60,200.00                60,200.00             

Total Expend. - Street Maintenance 932,691.00$           992,891.00$            60,200.00$           
 

 
 



 

 2 

GENERAL FUND Current Amended Difference

Solid Waste (4143)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 3,421,059.00$        3,421,059.00$         -$                      
Trash Container Purchases 30,000.00               37,495.19                7,495.19               
Dumpsters 45,000.00               62,133.38                17,133.38             
Garbage Packer 200,000.00             400,000.00              200,000.00           
Leaf Vacuum Loader -                          135,000.00              135,000.00           

Total Expend. - Solid Waste 3,696,059.00$        4,055,687.57$         359,628.57$         

Fire (5120)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 6,221,557.00$        6,221,557.00$         -$                      
Protective Clothing 57,901.00               67,543.13                9,642.13               
Fire Hose 13,155.00               26,002.37                12,847.37             

Total Expend. - Fire 6,292,613.00$        6,315,102.50$         22,489.50$           

Police (6121)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 9,179,687.00$        9,179,687.00$         -$                      
Protective Clothing 40,775.00               60,287.58                19,512.58             
Operational Supplies 100,765.00             121,489.12              20,724.12             
Administrative Car 218,365.00             261,495.00              43,130.00             

Total Expend. - Police 9,539,592.00$        9,622,958.70$         83,366.70$           

All Other Expenditures 19,307,782.00$      19,307,782.00$       -$                      
Total Expenditures - General Fund 45,240,839.00$      45,835,801.76$       594,962.76$         

 
Revenues
Tax Revenues 17,825,544.00$      17,825,544.00$       
Licenses and Permits 378,450.00             378,450.00              
Revenue from Other Agencies 16,896,255.00        16,896,255.00         
Charges for Services 4,805,727.00          4,805,727.00           
Capital Returns 2,045,996.00          2,484,326.00           438,330.00           
Miscellaneous Revenue 81,027.00               81,027.00                
Shared Services 3,207,840.00          3,207,840.00           
Appropriated Fund Balance -                          156,632.76              156,632.76           

Total Revenues - General Fund 45,240,839.00$      45,835,801.76$       594,962.76$         
 

 
 
UTILITY FUND Current Amended Difference

Distribution & Collections (4175)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 2,163,303.00$        2,163,303.00$         -$                      
Operational Supplies 240,000.00             262,308.75              22,308.75             
Machine Equipment Maintenance 45,000.00               54,984.86                9,984.86               
Utility Valve Truck -                          200,583.37              200,583.37           

Total Expend. - Distrib. & Collections 2,448,303.00$        2,681,179.98$         232,876.98$         

Water Treatment (4176)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 4,010,104.00$        4,010,104.00$         -$                      
Consultant Fees 571,096.00             596,721.00              25,625.00             

Total Expend. - Water Treatment 4,581,200.00$        4,606,825.00$         25,625.00$           

Water Reclamation (4177)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 4,011,587.00$        4,011,587.00$         -$                      
Consultant Fees 31,096.00               105,284.38              74,188.38             
Machine/Equipment Maintenance 703,162.00             716,213.52              13,051.52             
Pump Stations Maintenance 175,000.00             202,071.64              27,071.64             

Total Expend. - Water Reclamation 4,920,845.00$        5,035,156.54$         114,311.54$         
 

 
 
 



 

 3 

 
UTILITY FUND Current Amended Difference
Compost (4179)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 595,921.00$           595,921.00$            -$                      
Machine/Equipment Maintenance 108,000.00             126,947.75              18,947.75             

Total Expend. - Compost 703,921.00$           722,868.75$            18,947.75$           

All Other Expenditures 7,693,188.00$        7,693,188.00$         -$                      
Total Expenditures - Utility  Fund 20,347,457.00$      20,739,218.27$       391,761.27$         

Revenues
Revenue from Other Agences 2,558,994.00$        2,558,994.00$         
Charges for Services 17,455,830.00        17,455,830.00         
Capital Returns 15,400.00               15,400.00                
Miscellaneous Revenue 317,233.00             317,233.00              
Fund Balance -                          391,761.27              391,761.27           

Total Revenues - Utility Fund 20,347,457.00$      20,739,218.27$       391,761.27$         
 

 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of _________________, 
2021. 
 
       ______________________________  
                    Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 
 



E



Bryan MSCX Picnic Shelter Construction

Recreation

Date:  

Bid Number:  

Description:  

Department:  

7/22/2021

IFB2022-001

A
dd

en
du

m
 1

G
en

er
al

 C
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 

Li
ce

ns
e 

N
o.

Si
gn

at
ur

e 
Pa

ge

Pr
op

os
al

 F
or

m

N
on

-C
ol

lu
si

on
D

eb
ar

re
m

en
t 

an
d 

Su
sp

en
si

on
 

M
/W

B
E

Base Bid

Fi
ll 

D
ir

t 
U

ni
t 

Pr
ic

e

Bidders

1 √ 74723 √ √ √ √ √ $29,046.00 --

2 √ 76050 √ √ √ √ X* $47,190.00 --

3 √ 23697 √ √ √ √ X** $69,000.00 --

4 √ 77206 √ √ √ √ √ $39,600.00 950/20ton

5

6

7

8

9

The bid package was posted electronically on the City of Goldsboro, NC State IPS and NC State HUB websites.

* CAROLINA GROUP PROPERTIES,LLC submitted the MWBE ID form with one participating contractor. There were no additional affidavits included.

** DANIELS AND DANIELS CONSTRUCTION CO INC. submitted the MWBE ID form with no participation included, and Affidavit A. There was no affidavit B.

CAROLINA BAY CONSTRUCTION & MAITENACNE LLC

CAROLINA GROUP PROPERTIES,LLC

DANIELS AND DANIELS CONSTRUCTION CO INC.

GP CONSTRUCTION INC



F

















ITEM. ____ _ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

AUGUST 2, 2021 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION: 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Change Order No. 3 for 2020 Street Paving Project 
(Formal Bid #2020-001) 

The paving project consisted of approximately 5,000 square 
yards of pavement with 940 linear feet of storm water lines, 
400 linear feet of water line, and 1,500 linear feet of 
concrete curb and gutter. This project includes Oak Hill 
Drive from North Berkeley Boulevard to Green Drive, East 
Chestnut Street from South Slocumb Street to South Leslie 
Street, Hawthorne Street from Oleander A venue to 
Andrews A venue, and Mimosa Street from Claiborne Street 
to Randolph Street. 

City Council awarded the paving contract to Weaver's 
Asphalt & Maintenance Company for $641,711 on April 6, 
2020. 

Construction line items for storm drainage lines, gate 
valves, select borrow, and stone bedding were below the 
contract bid prices causing underrun costs totaling 
$56,664.60. However, due to additional work required for 
undercutting and asphalt surface course for East . Chestnut 
Street from South Slocumb Street to South Leslie Street 
and Mimosa Street from Claiborne Street to Randolph 
Street project overruns totaled $195,681.77. 

Change Order No. 3 detailed as follows: 

Project Overruns 
Less Project Underruns 
Total Contract Adjustments 

TOTAL CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 

$195,681.77 
56,664.60 

$139,017.17 

$139,017.17 

Staff reviewed change order with the Finance Director and 
determined that funds are available from street bonds and 
utility fund. 

It is recommended that the City Council, by motion, adopt 
the attached resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

G



Date: z4_J..,L Z t 

Date: 
-------

execute Change Order No. 3 for a total of $139,017.17 with 
Wea"l(er's Asphalt & Maintenance Company. 

..... ...._.._._ __ _._...,_.._.._, .... �-, 

Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 WITH WEAVER'S ASPHALT & MAINENANCE CO. 

FOR 2020 STREET PAVING IMPROVEMENTS 
FORMAL BID #2020-001 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro awarded a contract on 
April 6, 2020 to Weaver's Asphalt & Maintenance Company for 2020 Street Paving 
Improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro recommends additional 
work for the street paving project; and 

WHEREAS, Weaver's Asphalt & Maintenance Company submitted costs totaling 
$139,017.17 for the additional work; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of 
Goldsboro to issue Change Order No. 3 to Contract #2020-001 with Weaver's Asphalt 
and Maintenance Company; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute Change Order No.
3 for $139,017.17 with Weaver's Asphalt & Maintenance Company for 2020
Street Paving Project.

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
day of ________ ,. 2021.

Mayor Pro Tem 

Attested by: 

City Clerk 

----



H













I





















J











K







L











Item M


	Agenda 8-2-21
	Item A Minutes 7-12-21
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL
	JULY 12, 2021
	UWORK SESSION
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on July 12, 2021.
	UCall to Order.U  Mayor Pro Tem Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.
	URoll Call.
	Present: Mayor Pro Tem David Ham, Presiding
	Councilmember Hiawatha Jones
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Taj Polack
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	Councilmember Gene Aycock (joined at 5:43 pm via Zoom)
	UCITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Present:  Mayor Pro Tem David Ham, Presiding
	Councilmember Hiawatha Jones
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Taj Polack
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	Councilmember Gene Aycock (attended via Zoom)
	UApproval of Minutes.U  Councilmember Matthews made a motion that the minutes be amended to reflect her opposal to the resolution, the procedure and the adoption of the agenda of the June 21, 2021 meeting due to the fact she was not given an opportun...

	Item C  Upset Bid & Surplus 1003 N George (Gill)
	Agenda Memo 2021-08-02 Upset Bid Resolution 1003 N George (Gill)
	Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process 1003 N George St (Gill)
	1003 N George St- MAP
	2021-07-22 Offer to Purchase
	Appraisal Card 1003 N George St 07-26-21

	Item D  Operating Amendment PO Roll & Rolling Stock
	Agenda Oper Amend & FY21 PO Rollover 2021-08-02_0
	FY21 PO Rollover List_2
	Agenda List 08-02-21

	ORDINANCE FY22 Budget PO Rollover 2021-08-02_0

	Item E-1 Picnic Shelter Bid Award
	item E-2  Bid Opening Document Confirmation & Tabulation
	Item F-1 Optimist Fun Day 2021 Temp Street Closure
	Item F-2 Optimist Club Street Closing Request-2021
	Item G  Change Order No. 3 for 2020 Street Paving Project (FB 2020-001)
	Item H  SU-7-21 Agenda Memo TC
	Item I   Z-7-21 Agenda Memo TC
	Item J  TMC 2021 Agenda Memo
	Item K  Street Name Change
	Item L  SU-8-21 Agenda Memo TC
	Item M  Purple Heart Proclamation



